
 
 

Oregon Racing Commission 

P.O. Box 366 

Gresham, OR 97030 

ORC.info@orc.oregon.gov 

971-673-0213 Fax 

www.oregon.gov/racing 

 

 
 

Medication and Safety Committee Meeting 

Thursday, March 20, 2025 

11:00 A.M. 

 

 

The Oregon Racing Commission’s Medication and Safety Committee will meet at 11:00 a.m. on 

Thursday, March 20th, 2025. The meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams 

videoconference. You may join the meeting by clicking on the link below, or by calling in. Please 

be aware if you call in, your phone number will appear as your ID.  

 

Topic: Oregon Racing Commission's Medication and Safety Meeting 

Time: Thursday, March 20, 11:00 A.M. Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Meeting: Teams Link 

Meeting ID: 270 357 333 97 

Passcode: cW9nG9k3 

 

If you are unable to access this session through a computer, please dial: 1 503-446-4951  

Phone conference ID: 826 009 550# 

 

A request for an interpreter or other accommodation for persons with disabilities should be 

made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Commission staff at 503-853-5927 or by email at 

karen.parkman@orc.oregon.gov. This proposed agenda is subject to last-minute changes 

without prior notice. 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

APPROVALS: 

1) Meeting Agenda 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWQyOTlmYTItYThkMC00NzhjLWExNWQtOTMzYTNiZTEzYjBi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22aa3f6932-fa7c-47b4-a0ce-a598cad161cf%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22452cc906-5aaa-4073-a70e-7f8a10b9655a%22%7d


OLD BUSINESS:  

2) Discussion of OAR 462-150-0050 (2) Amendment – Restrictions on racing participation 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

3) Discussion on TCO2 Testing 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Movement to adjourn. 

 

At any time during the public session, the Commission may go into executive session to consider 

information or records exempt from disclosure pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), ORS 192.345(2), 

OAR 462-220-0070 regarding trade secrets; and/or ORS 192.660(2) (f) and ORS 192.355(9) to 

consult with counsel concerning written legal advice; and/or ORS 192.660(2)(h) to discuss its 

legal rights and duties regarding current litigation, or litigation likely to be filed. The 

Commission may also elect to deliberate on pending contested cases pursuant to ORS 

192.690(1). Additional items may be placed on the agenda after the general mailing of the 

agenda. Calls may be made to the Commission office the week of the meeting to inquire about 

additions. 

 

 

 



OAR 462-150-0050 Amendment 

Forming the Race; Weights, PenalƟes, and Allowances; Scratches 

(1) The racing secretary, in conjuncƟon with the race meet licensee, shall set the condiƟons of all races.

For each racing day, the racing secretary shall use every reasonable effort to card the number of

Thoroughbred, Quarter Horse, Appaloosa, Paint, Arabian, and mule races listed in the license applicaƟon

and approved by the commission. Also, for each racing day the racing secretary shall card one race which

is limited to Oregon-bred Thoroughbred horses. If there are not enough available horses of that class on

any day, the race may be replaced with the approval of the stewards. If the race is reopened to allow

other horses to enter, preference at the draw shall be given to the Oregon-bred Thoroughbred horses,

including preference extending to an Oregon-bred maiden over a non-Oregon-bred winner. If feasible, an

Oregon-bred Thoroughbred race which does not fill shall be carried over to a subsequent day's racing

program. The stewards shall report to the commission the reasons for the cancellaƟon of an Oregon-

bred Thoroughbred race.

(2) Restrictions on Race Participation

(a) A racehorse is prohibited from participating in a second race the following two days
after completing its most recent race. 

(b) 10-Day Restriction: A racehorse is prohibited from participating in a third race within
10 days of completing its first race in that period. 

(c) Compliance: Trainers and owners are responsible for ensuring compliance with these
restrictions. Any violations may result in penalties as determined by the Oregon Racing 
Commission. 

(d) Exceptions: No exceptions to this rule shall be granted unless explicitly approved in
writing by the Oregon Racing Commission under extraordinary circumstances. 

3(2) AŌer entries have closed, the racing secretary shall compile a list of the entries without delay and 

post the list in a conspicuous place. 

4(3) In determining the number of horses that can be drawn into a race the width of the track shall be at 

least the total of 10 feet for the first horse plus 5 feet for each addiƟonal horse. 

5(4) If the number of entries in any race exceeds the number of horses that will be allowed to start, the 

starters for the race shall be determined by lot when not determined by an adverƟsed preference 

system. Persons who made the entry shall be given an opportunity to aƩend the drawing for starƟng 

posiƟons. Post posiƟons shall be determined by lot. A steward or designated representaƟve shall be 

present at the draw. 

6(5) If the number of entries in any one race is sufficient to reasonably assure that two separate races 

will fill from those entries, the racing secretary may divide the race. If an overnight race is divided and a 

trainer has entered two horses in the race, the horses will be placed in separate divisions of the race for 



the draw. They will be drawn in the separate divisions of the race with both horses retaining their 

preferences. 

7(6) If any race is canceled because of insufficient entries, the racing secretary may divide an overnight 

race. The overnight race is subject to the same condiƟons, with entries in each race drawn by lot when 

not determined by an adverƟsed preference system. In cases where a trainer has entered two or more 

horses in a divided race, those races will be handled as outlined in OAR 462-150-0050(5). 

8(7) When a scratch Ɵme is provided, a list of horses not to exceed four may be drawn from the overflow 

entries and listed as eligible to start if any horse which was originally carded is scratched. When an 

originally carded horse is scratched, horses from the "Also Eligible" list shall fill the race in the order in 

which they were originally drawn. The owner or trainer of any horse on the "Also Eligible" list which is 

drawn into a race must noƟfy the racing secretary not later than scratch Ɵme if he or she does not intend 

the horse to start. Any "Also Eligible" horse which does not start when drawn into a race shall forfeit all 

preferences. 

9(8) In all races, horses which fill a race from the "Also Eligible" list shall take the outside post posiƟons 

in the order that they are drawn from the original draw. In all races run on the straight-away, except 

Thoroughbred races, an "Also Eligible" horse shall take the post posiƟon of the horse which was 

scratched. 

10(9) Unless a preference system is used, the racing secretary shall keep a list of all horses excluded from 

races because of too many entries, and those horses shall have preference in the next race in accordance 

with a system established by the racing secretary. This list shall be known as the "Preferred List". 

 

11(10) When a horse on the "Preferred List" is entered in a subsequent race, a claim of preference must 

be made at the Ɵme of entry and noted on the entry form, or the preference will be lost and the horse 

will be removed from the list. 

 

12(11) If a race overfills, any "In Today Horse" which has been entered shall be given no preference. A 

horse on the "Also Eligible" list shall not be considered an "In Today Horse" unƟl it has actually been 

given a posiƟon in a race. 

13(12) In all races that have filled over the number of starters and "Also Eligible", an "In Today Horse" 

shall receive no future preference if it is drawn in as an "Also Eligible". A maiden horse shall have 

preference over an "In Today Horse" but not over the second choice of an entry to the exclusion of a 

winner. The second choice of an entry or an "In Today Horse" on the race's "Also Eligible" list shall have 

no preference over any other "Also Eligible" horses. A horse on the "Also Eligible" list that is scratched 

will receive no preference, regardless of any scratches in the race itself. This horse shall not be 

considered an "In Today Horse". 

14(13) If through error an "In Today Horse" or a horse lacking preference is drawn into a race that has 

overfilled, the horse shall be scratched if the error is discovered before scratch Ɵme, enabling another 

horse to be drawn into the race. No horse having started any race shall be deemed ineligible because of 

the error. 



15(14) In high weighted races, high weights will have preference to the draw. In all races determined by 

Ɵme trials, the fastest Ɵmes shall have preference to the draw. 

16(15) No race which has closed shall be canceled except by the stewards. 

17(16) Weights, PenalƟes, and Allowances: 

(a) Fillies two years old shall have an allowance of three pounds, except in handicaps and races where 

the condiƟons expressly state to the contrary. Fillies and mares three years old and older shall have an 

allowance of five pounds between January 1 and August 31, and three pounds between September 1 

and December 31. 

(b) To be eligible for weight allowances they must be claimed at the entry. Except sex allowances, which 

are mandatory, all other allowances are opƟonal. Failure to claim any allowance, except for sex 

allowance, is not a cause for disqualificaƟon. No sex allowances will be given in straight-away races. 

(c) A horse shall start with only the allowance to which it is enƟtled at the Ɵme of starƟng, regardless of 

its allowance at the Ɵme of entry. Horses incurring penalƟes for a race shall not be enƟtled to any of the 

weight allowances for that race. PenalƟes are mandatory. 

(d) Horses not enƟtled to the first allowance in a race shall not be enƟtled to the second, and so on. 

PenalƟes and allowances are not cumulaƟve unless specified in the condiƟons of the race. 

(e) No horse shall incur a weight penalty for a placement from which it is disqualified, but a horse 

winning through a disqualificaƟon of another horse shall incur the weight penalƟes of that placement. 

No placement of a horse moved up shall make that horse ineligible for a race which has already been 

run. 

(f) The racing secretary shall append to the weight for every handicap, the hour and day in which 

winners will be liable to a penalty. No alteraƟon shall be made aŌer publicaƟon except for erroneous 

omissions of the name or weight of a horse duly entered. In that case, the racing secretary may correct 

the omission with permission of the stewards. 

(g) In all overnight races of four (4) furlongs or over, except handicaps, apprenƟce jockey weight 

allowances may be claimed per OAR 462-140-0350(5). 

(h) In all overnight races, except handicaps, the minimum weight, subject to sex and apprenƟce 

allowances, shall be 112 pounds for Thoroughbreds, 116 pounds for Quarter Horses, and for all other 

breeds of horses shall be as designated by the commission. 

(i) The racing secretary shall publish in the condiƟon book the criteria for eligibility for horses running at 

the meet. 

(j) Winnings shall include all money won for first place finishes up to the Ɵme appointed for the start, 

shall apply to all races in any country, and shall include walkover or forfeit money. The value of any prize 

not of money or not paid in money shall not be included. Winnings during the year shall be computed 

from January 1 of that year. The earnings of a winning horse shall be computed on the value to the 

winner. The winner of certain sum shall mean the winner of single race of that value unless otherwise 

expressed in the condiƟons. 



(k) The following rules shall apply to Quarter Horse, Appaloosa, Arabian and Paint racing:

(A) In straight-away races no weight allowances will be given for sex or apprenƟce jockeys, whereas in

races run around a turn, the same allowances for sex which are granted in Thoroughbred races will be in

effect.

(B) Horses which gain a posiƟon in a race from the "Also Eligible List" shall take the outside post

posiƟons in order that they are drawn from the "Also Eligibles", except in the case of races run on the

straight-away, in which case, the "Also Eligible" shall take the post posiƟon of the horse declared out or

scratched.

(C) The respecƟve breed's chart book shall be the official chart for each breed's horse racing.

18(17) Scratches: 

(a) Scratches from stakes races will close 60 minutes before post Ɵme for the first race. If a scratch Ɵme

is provided, scratches from all other races must be made prior to the "scratch Ɵme" designated by the

racing secretary. The field may be scratched down to the number as stated in the condiƟon book by the

racing secretary. If the field has already been scratched down to the minimum number, the scratch will

not be allowed except for medical reasons verified by the commission veterinarian, or as approved by

the stewards. If more than one horse is compeƟng for the last available non-medical scratch, the right to

scratch shall be determined by lot. "Also Eligibles" shall have the same scratch privileges as regularly

carded horses.

(b) If any of a horse's owners is not properly licensed it shall be scratched by the board of stewards 15

minutes prior to post of the race.

(c) No horse may be scratched unƟl the owner, trainer, or authorized agent has noƟfied the racing

secretary in wriƟng prior to scratch Ɵme, except for medical reasons discovered aŌer scratch Ɵme and

approved by the commission veterinarian. If a horse is stabled off the racecourse a valid request to

scratch the horse may be accepted from the trainer by telephone if the trainer provides his or her

Oregon Racing Commission license number for idenƟficaƟon purposes. A scratch made by telephone

must be confirmed in wriƟng if required by the stewards. If the scratch is for medical or physical reasons,

the trainer must submit a leƩer from a licensed veterinarian within 72 hours explaining the reason and

necessity for the scratch.

(d) The stewards may scratch any horse from a race when it appears that there has been a violaƟon of

the rules of horse racing. Any racing official who has knowledge of a violaƟon must report it immediately

to the stewards.

(e) The commission veterinarian may scratch a horse at any Ɵme for reasons as per OAR 462-140-

0070(4).



(k) The following rules shall apply to Quarter Horse, Appaloosa, Arabian and Paint racing:

(A) In straight-away races no weight allowances will be given for sex or apprentice jockeys, whereas in

races run around a turn, the same allowances for sex which are granted in Thoroughbred races will be in

effect.

(B) Horses which gain a position in a race from the "Also Eligible List" shall take the outside post

positions in order that they are drawn from the "Also Eligibles", except in the case of races run on the

straight-away, in which case, the "Also Eligible" shall take the post position of the horse declared out or

scratched.

(C) The respective breed's chart book shall be the official chart for each breed's horse racing.

18(17) Scratches: 

(a) Scratches from stakes races will close 60 minutes before post time for the first race. If a scratch time

is provided, scratches from all other races must be made prior to the "scratch time" designated by the

racing secretary. The field may be scratched down to the number as stated in the condition book by the

racing secretary. If the field has already been scratched down to the minimum number, the scratch will

not be allowed except for medical reasons verified by the commission veterinarian, or as approved by

the stewards. If more than one horse is competing for the last available non-medical scratch, the right to

scratch shall be determined by lot. "Also Eligibles" shall have the same scratch privileges as regularly

carded horses.

(b) If any of a horse's owners is not properly licensed it shall be scratched by the board of stewards 15

minutes prior to post of the race.

(c) No horse may be scratched until the owner, trainer, or authorized agent has notified the racing

secretary in writing prior to scratch time, except for medical reasons discovered after scratch time and

approved by the commission veterinarian. If a horse is stabled off the racecourse a valid request to

scratch the horse may be accepted from the trainer by telephone if the trainer provides his or her

Oregon Racing Commission license number for identification purposes. A scratch made by telephone

must be confirmed in writing if required by the stewards. If the scratch is for medical or physical reasons,

the trainer must submit a letter from a licensed veterinarian within 72 hours explaining the reason and

necessity for the scratch.

(d) The stewards may scratch any horse from a race when it appears that there has been a violation of

the rules of horse racing. Any racing official who has knowledge of a violation must report it immediately

to the stewards.

(e) The commission veterinarian may scratch a horse at any time for reasons as per OAR 462-140-

0070(4).


	March 2025 Medication and Safety Committee Meeting Agenda
	OAR 462-150-0050 (2) Amendment - Race days
	NoticeFilingTrackedChanges 462-160-0130 (4) (D)



